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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Our agenda today

          3  is brief but significant. The bills before us today

          4  involve mostly benefits issues for a class of

          5  workers ranging from Corrections Officers to School

          6  Safety Agents, Taxi and Limousine workers,

          7  Sanitation workers and investigators and District

          8  Attorneys offices.

          9                 These bills clarify the various

         10  portions of state law to provide benefits such as

         11  disability pensions for campus peace officers and

         12  school safety agents; grant service credit to

         13  investigators and District Attorneys' offices, and

         14  allows certain Sanitation workers affected by the

         15  recession of 1991 to 1993 to complete certain

         16  required contributions to the NYCRS system at the

         17  end of 20 years of service.

         18                 We also have legislation before us

         19  that would expand the authority of Deputy Sheriffs

         20  of the Counties of New York City under the State

         21  Criminal Procedure Law.

         22                 These bills recognize a tremendous

         23  range of services offered to us by City workers.

         24                 These bills recognize that these

         25  civil servants provided needed assistance to New
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          2  Yorkers in a wide range of fields, from education

          3  and sanitation to criminal justice and public

          4  safety.

          5                 And the need for these specific

          6  pieces of legislation suggest the complexities

          7  involving supporting a municipal workforce of this

          8  size.

          9                 To begin, let me introduce the

         10  members that are currently here. We have Council

         11  Member McMahon and Council Member Gentile.

         12                 We will be hearing testimony from the

         13  following people. First up will be Matthew Campese

         14  from the Office of Labor Relations.

         15                 We've also been joined by Council

         16  Member Addabbo.

         17                 MR. CAMPESE: Good morning.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning.

         19                 MR. CAMPESE: Good morning, Chairman

         20  Rivera, and members of the Committee.

         21                 My name is Matthew Campese. I'm an

         22  Assistant Commissioner with the Office of Labor

         23  Relations. Unfortunately, Commissioner Hanley had

         24  another commitment and could not be here today, but

         25  he asked that I attend the hearing to clarify the
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          2  City's position on the SLRs, which are presently

          3  before your Committee.

          4                 The Administration opposes several of

          5  the SLRs that are on the agenda today, specifically

          6  the City opposes SLR 86, dealing with the detective

          7  investigator pension modification, the preconsidered

          8  SLR that would expand the authority of the New York

          9  City Deputy Sheriffs. SLR 54 which would provide a

         10  three-quarter accidental disability pension to

         11  certain members of NYCRS and BURS (phonetic), and

         12  lastly, SLR 58, which would reduce from 30 to 20 the

         13  number of years certain Sanitation workers who were

         14  laid off in the 1990s would have to make additional

         15  member contributions.

         16                 With regard to SLR 86, this is a bill

         17  that would amend the 20-year retirement bill for

         18  detective investigators, which, as you know, was

         19  enacted last year.

         20                 Specifically this bill would amend

         21  the benefit provisions to provide an additional

         22  benefit for years of non-detective investigator

         23  credited service, rendered prior to the required

         24  minimum 20-year period, so as to provide a benefit

         25  for each such year of additional credited service
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          2  which would be equal to one-sixtieth of a final

          3  average salary.

          4                 The City was opposed to the original

          5  bill, as you know, which enacted the 20-year

          6  retirement benefit for this group, and it continues

          7  to oppose any additional enhancements to that bill.

          8                 This bill certainly would have a

          9  cost, and it is our position that a benefit such as

         10  this should be discussed in the collective

         11  bargaining process.

         12                 Lastly, I have been informed by

         13  representatives of the City that this bill, if

         14  enacted, would provide a better benefit than is

         15  currently enjoyed by New York City police officers.

         16                 Under the current law, if a police

         17  officer had credited non-police officer service,

         18  which was rendered prior to becoming a police

         19  officer, that time is calculated as three-quarters

         20  of one-sixtieth the average salary for the time that

         21  officer reached his 20-year minimum period until

         22  retirement.

         23                 The current bill would allow credited

         24  time rendered as a non-detective investigator to be

         25  calculated as one-sixtieth of that detective
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          2  investigator's final average salary.

          3                 This is clearly different than police

          4  officers, and it undoubtedly could have a spill-over

          5  effect to the other uniformed plans, and we are

          6  opposed, therefore, for these reasons.

          7                 We are also opposed to the

          8  preconsidered SLR that would expand the authority of

          9  the Deputy Sheriffs employed by the City of New

         10  York.

         11                 This bill would, among other things

         12  expand the authority of Deputy Sheriffs to execute

         13  various types of warrants and also to engage in

         14  stop-n-frisks.

         15                 It would effectively grant New York

         16  City Deputy Sheriffs police officer status.

         17                 It is the City's position that a bill

         18  such as this which touches on and which would

         19  ultimately have an impact on safety and security

         20  throughout the City, should be left to the

         21  discretion of the police commissioner, who would be

         22  in a position to determine the City's operational

         23  needs as it relates to safety and security, rather

         24  than being achieved unilaterally through legislation

         25  such as this.
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          2                 We are opposed to SLR 54 which would

          3  provide an accidental three-quarter disability to

          4  members of NYCRS and BURS in the titles of campus

          5  peace officers, school safety agent, special

          6  officer, taxi, limousine inspector and parking

          7  control specialist.

          8                 The City has opposed similar bills to

          9  this in years past and the Governor has in fact

         10  vetoed bills similar to this the past several years.

         11                 There obviously is a cost associated

         12  with this bill. Given the fact that the City's

         13  pension costs are increasing substantially, we do

         14  not believe it would be prudent to enact this

         15  enhanced pension benefit.

         16                 Secondly, it is our position that

         17  matters such as this should be discussed and

         18  mutually supported through the collective-bargaining

         19  process, rather than being unilaterally imposed

         20  through legislation.

         21                 Lastly, the Administration opposes

         22  SLR 58, which would reduce from 30 to 20 the number

         23  of years certain Sanitation workers who were laid

         24  off in 1990s would have to make additional member

         25  contributions.
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          2                 Chapter 528 of the laws of 2001

          3  permitted employees of the New York City Sanitation

          4  Department who were laid off on or after July 1st,

          5  1990 and were subsequently rehired within 33 months

          6  to be deemed to have been in continuous service for

          7  seniority and pension service credit purposes.

          8                 Under the bill which was supported by

          9  the City, after discussions and negotiations with

         10  the union, affected employees are required to pay an

         11  additional two percent of earnings until the date of

         12  their retirement for completion of 30 years of

         13  service, whichever is earlier.

         14                 This bill would reduce the time for

         15  which payment needs to be made from 30 years to 20

         16  years of service.

         17                 Obviously such a change would have a

         18  cost implication, and the City would oppose for that

         19  reason, but the City also opposes because the

         20  original bill was supported through mutual

         21  discussion and negotiations, and, therefore, any

         22  change to the law we believe should not be imposed

         23  unilaterally through legislation, but rather should

         24  be discussed and agreed to in the collective

         25  bargaining process.
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          2                 In fact, I have been informed that

          3  the Governor has vetoed the same bill in years past,

          4  and one of the reasons that he gave in his veto

          5  message last year was that he was reluctant to

          6  interfere with an issue that was mutually agreed to

          7  by the parties in negotiations.

          8                 We, therefore, continue to oppose

          9  this bill.

         10                 That concludes my testimony on the

         11  SLRs, and I want to thank you for the time and

         12  opportunity to make this statement on the record.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Council Member McMahon has a

         16  question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chairman.

         19                 With regard to SLR 58, the Sanitation

         20  Workers Bill, doesn't this bill just put those

         21  workers who are laid off in the same position as

         22  workers who were not laid off?

         23                 MR. CAMPESE: I'm not sure I

         24  understand what you mean. We've reduced the time

         25  that they have to pay this additional member
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          2  contribution, which was imposed as a result of the

          3  2001 legislation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But it will

          5  put them on the same level playing field as all the

          6  other workers.

          7                 I mean, they're being asked now to

          8  contribute more than workers who were not laid off;

          9  isn't that correct?

         10                 MR. CAMPESE: I'm not sure if it's

         11  more than what other workers are required to pay.

         12  But I can tell you that, you might have to ask the

         13  actuary to comment on that, but I can tell you that

         14  this bill that was enacted in 2001 was agreed to by

         15  both the City and the union in negotiations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, is the

         17  Administration willing to agree to this change

         18  without legislation?

         19                 MR. CAMPESE: Our position is that it

         20  should be discussed in collective bargaining.

         21                 I'm not here to say that we would

         22  agree to anything.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Has it been

         24  --

         25                 MR. CAMPESE: But the proper forum
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          2  should be at the collective bargaining table.

          3                 To my knowledge, I don't believe it

          4  has ever been discussed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I don't think

          6  they would be here if the Administration was willing

          7  to do it through collective bargaining. But it just

          8  seems to me that workers who were laid off through

          9  no fault of their own because of financial

         10  exigencies that exist in the City should not be

         11  penalized for that and should be made whole when

         12  they're brought back to work, and that's what this

         13  bill seeks to do.

         14                 So, if the Administration is not

         15  willing to sit down and to negotiate that, and put

         16  these workers back on a par with the other workers,

         17  then we have to do it, and the Governor probably

         18  vetoed it because you guys asked them to veto it and

         19  he probably just espoused the language that you guys

         20  asked them to espouse.

         21                 If it should be done through

         22  collective bargaining, why don't you sit down and do

         23  it.

         24                 MR. CAMPESE: Well, I'm not saying it

         25  should be done in collective bargaining, but the
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          2  collective bargaining table is the proper forum to

          3  have these type of discussions.

          4                 As you know, just because something

          5  is brought up in collective bargaining, it's not

          6  automatically done. Not everybody gets everything

          7  that they're looking for in collective bargaining.

          8  But we do believe that that is the forum that it

          9  should be discussed.

         10                 To my knowledge, I don't know if the

         11  union has ever presented this as a demand to the

         12  City in the collective bargaining process.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, the

         14  City must know it's an issue because it's been the

         15  subject of prior legislation. So, you've been on

         16  notice that it's an issue. I can't say either,

         17  because I'm not at that table, but I think we all

         18  agree with the principle that workers who were laid

         19  off should not over time be penalized for that fact

         20  and they should have the same rights as if they have

         21  not been laid off when it comes to pension and

         22  retirement and all those things. So, as long as the

         23  unions keep coming to me at least with legislation

         24  like that, I'll support it. And I think the

         25  Administration would do well to sit down with them
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          2  and work it out so we don't have to keep doing this.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 We have Council Member Vinnie

          7  Gentile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman.

         10                 In regard to SLR 86, isn't it true

         11  for the most part, for the most part, in terms of

         12  the detective investigators, that their service

         13  prior to being detective investigators, for the most

         14  part, is in some law enforcement capacity?

         15                 MR. CAMPESE: I don't know that to be

         16  a fact.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.

         18                 MR. CAMPESE: It could be true, I

         19  really don't -- I can't say.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: From

         21  experience, I would have to say that is true. So,

         22  equating that in what this SLR is attempting to do

         23  and what the State is attempting to do is really

         24  not, we're not talking apples and oranges here,

         25  we're talking about really law enforcement career.
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          2                 MR. CAMPESE: Well, that could be

          3  true. Like I said, I don't know that to be a fact.

          4  But my understanding last year when this bill was

          5  enacted, one of the main reasons given for the

          6  passage of the bill was to liken the detective

          7  investigator 20-year pension and model it after the

          8  police officer in a 20-year pension benefit.

          9                 And as I've said, we've had

         10  conversations with the Law Department and their

         11  interpretation of this bill is that it would

         12  actually provide a better benefit than the New York

         13  City police officers currently enjoy. And the better

         14  benefit is the way that that pre-detective

         15  investigator service would be counted toward their

         16  pension. It's calculated differently than it is

         17  currently calculated for police officers.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 We've also been joined by Council

         22  Member Lew Fidler and Council Member Helen Sears.

         23                 And, sir, I would just like to add

         24  that in the absence of a real concerted negotiation

         25  with the Office of Labor Relations, I think the City
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          2  Council is the adequate forum for other City workers

          3  to come forward to find a way to remedy the

          4  situation, in the absence of a real concerted effort

          5  on behalf of the Administration. I look forward to

          6  continuing to work with City workers to make sure

          7  they are indeed kept whole, and indeed able to live

          8  in the City where the cost of living is constantly

          9  rising, and it becomes much tougher day-by-day to

         10  make ends meet. So, I think it's only right that we

         11  are collected here today in this manner to address

         12  those concerns.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 Any other questions?

         15                 Seeing none, thank you, sir.

         16                 Next we have Mr. Kuasnicki from the

         17  Correction Officers Association.

         18                 MR. KUASNICKI: Good morning.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning,

         20  sir.

         21                 MR. KUASNICKI: Council members of the

         22  State and Federal Legislative Committee, I would

         23  like to thank you for the opportunity to come before

         24  you and request a Home Rule Message to correct

         25  legislation that was approved by the City Council
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          2  and ultimately signed into law by Governor George E.

          3  Pataki in 2004.

          4                 The legislation, Chapter 581 of the

          5  laws of 2004, granted uniformed Correction members

          6  the right to purchase pension credit for

          7  departmental authorized childcare leave. The 2004

          8  legislation mirrored the New York City police

          9  childcare leave bill that was signed into law in

         10  2001.

         11                 The two years I worked with the City

         12  Actuary and Department of Correction personnel in

         13  achieving an adequate fiscal note for the 402

         14  eligible uniformed Correction members. It wasn't

         15  until the legislation was ready to be implemented by

         16  the New York City Employees Retirement System that

         17  it was discovered that Tier III Correction members

         18  were not addressed in the legislation.

         19                 The fiscal note that was attached to

         20  the 2004 legislation used the 204 eligibles in

         21  determining the cost to the City. The 402 eligibles

         22  were all Tier III members.

         23                 I am asking the City to grant a Home

         24  Rule for SLR 37, thus amendment the 2004 legislation

         25  to cover all uniformed Correction members which was
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          2  the original intent of the 2004 legislation.

          3                 In doing so, the City Council allowed

          4  the uniformed Correction members to maintain parity

          5  with our brother and sister officers of the New York

          6  City Police Department.

          7                 I thank you in advance for your time

          8  and consideration into my application for a Home

          9  Rule Message, SLR 37.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Any questions?

         11                 Seeing none, sir, thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. KUASNICKI: Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We next have

         15  Harry Nespoli from Local 831.

         16                 Gentlemen, just state your name for

         17  the record and proceed with your testimony. And

         18  thank you for being here today. And Ron Bishop, as

         19  well.

         20                 MR. BISHOP: Good morning. Thank you

         21  for the opportunity to speak before you this

         22  morning. My name is Bob Bishop. I represent the

         23  uniformed Sanitation Association, Local 831, and

         24  Harry Nespoli, the President of the Union, is to my

         25  right.
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          2                 We're here to speak in support of SLR

          3  58, and I thank Councilman McMahon for almost

          4  obviating the need for our testimony.

          5                 In any event, this legislation stems

          6  from two factors. One is that in 2001, after a long

          7  period of time, the fellows that were laid off

          8  between 1990 and 1993 were given the right to

          9  purchase back their time. And at the time that we

         10  negotiated this legislation, the overall pattern for

         11  contributions to the Sanitation pension, which is,

         12  as you know, a 20-year half-pay system for which the

         13  members pay an additional 5.65 percent, required

         14  that you pay until your 20-year retirement or 30

         15  years of service.

         16                 The same year, in 2001, another piece

         17  of legislation was passed, which reduced that

         18  30-year time period to 20 years of payment for the

         19  overall system.

         20                 Had that bill been passed prior to

         21  the buy-back, we would have put a 20-year pattern

         22  into that, and what we're trying to do is equalize

         23  this pattern with the overall pattern of

         24  contribution. So, it's a very simple piece that we

         25  look at as a technical amendment, which isn't really
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          2  a technical amendment.

          3                 Furthermore, I have tried to discuss

          4  this, obviously in the last two years through the

          5  Mayor's representatives in Albany, and they've

          6  indicated an unwillingness to discuss this, citing

          7  the retirement and Social Security law, which

          8  prohibit the discussion of pension issues in the

          9  collective bargaining process, and lead directly to

         10  legislative action.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. NESPOLI: Very quick on it. The

         13  fact is that it actually comes down to making it

         14  whole. First of all, thank you very much for

         15  listening to us here.

         16                 But for a person to continue working,

         17  for whatever the reason is, it could be the

         18  mortgage, it could be having the kids in school. I

         19  don't have to tell you what the cost is out there

         20  right now. Cost is totally ridiculous. To retire and

         21  then continue paying this, you're actually paying

         22  money to come to work. And you're working next to

         23  another brother or sister there that it stopped. And

         24  he's being penalized because of the fact that he was

         25  laid off. Not only did he lay out the money to buy
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          2  back the time so that if at that time he can retire,

          3  he also turns around and now has to pay a double

          4  penalty. And I said it here last year, when it was

          5  passed by the Committee, I really appreciate that, I

          6  hope it's going to be passed this time, it's like

          7  paying a vig. You're paying to come to work, to

          8  continue working, to give the services to the

          9  citizens of New York, but also you need that money

         10  in your pocket for your family.

         11                 So, with that there, I just hope that

         12  it passes again, and thank you for the time that you

         13  give us here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         15  much, gentlemen.

         16                 Any questions?

         17                 Council Member Helen Sears and then

         18  Mike McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Tell me, what

         20  is the status of this in Albany? Because we heard

         21  before -- where is it at?

         22                 Because one of the things that not

         23  only do we pass good legislation, we also pass

         24  legislation to correct the wrongs. It seems that

         25  this is something that really needs to be corrected.
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          2  So, where is it at?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: The Governor had

          4  vetoed the bill last year, so we presented it back

          5  on the table today, so we can have hopefully

          6  consideration up in Albany to have it passed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Don't we have

          8  the overrides the way we do?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Maybe not as

         11  many. All right, so maybe we have to do a little

         12  more.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: But we'll keep on

         14  pressing until we get it done.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I mean, this is

         16  really a very inequitable situation. It needs to be

         17  corrected.

         18                 MR. BISHOP: In Albany, although the

         19  bill was vetoed last year and the Governor did ask

         20  for us to go and discuss it further with the City,

         21  we've tried and the City has responded, as I

         22  indicated before, but both Assemblyman Abate and

         23  Assemblyman Padavan are pushing it forward this year

         24  and provided the City Council agrees and presents a

         25  Home Rule Message, they indicated to me that it will
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          2  pass again and they will try and convince the

          3  Governor to see it differently.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, we're

          5  good at Home Rule Messages. All right, thank you.

          6                 MR. NESPOLI: Just to touch on another

          7  point that was brought up earlier on the other

          8  testimony to negotiate it in collective bargaining,

          9  we're two and a half years without a contract. They

         10  just stopped talking. How can you do anything if you

         11  just turn away and walk out the door and look at me

         12  and say I'll see you in five months?

         13                 So, that's where it's really at.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

         16  McMahon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         18  as explained by Mr. Bishop, and as I understand it,

         19  the workers who were laid off in 2003 wouldn't be

         20  affected by this because they are covered by the

         21  second law that was passed in '01. They were only

         22  worried about those that were sort of in that gap,

         23  who got their jobs back and got the buy-back back

         24  but didn't get the reduction from 30 to 20. Right?

         25  The ones who were laid off in '03, they're not a
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          2  concern on this?

          3                 MR. BISHOP: The members that were

          4  laid off in 2003 are not covered by this law, or any

          5  other law for that matter and will have to be --

          6  we're trying to negotiate that with the City, as to

          7  what their status on repurchasing time for which

          8  they were laid off.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: We may have

         10  to do a bill to enable them to do their buy-back

         11  like you did for the workers in the early '90s.

         12                 MR. BISHOP: That's correct. It's a

         13  completely separate issue. It's still on the table.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Can we just

         15  do one blanket law that says that any City worker

         16  who is laid off comes back with full pension rights

         17  as if they've never been laid off?

         18                 MR. NESPOLI: I'm in support of that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: All right.

         20  We'll work on that. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Take care

         22  gentlemen.

         23                 Next we're going to hear from Greg

         24  Floyd from the Teamsters Local 237.

         25                 Thank you very much, sir. You may
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          2  state your name for the record and proceed with your

          3  testimony.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning.

          6                 MR. FLOYD: My name is Gregory Floyd.

          7  I'm the Secretary Treasurer of Local 237.

          8                 I appear before you today to speak on

          9  behalf of SLR 54.

         10                 SLR 54 is a Home Rule Message for

         11  companion bills currently pending in Albany, Senate

         12  4067 Padavan, and Assembly 7021 Abate. Once enacted,

         13  these bills would provide certain 24-hour peace

         14  officers who work in close proximity with the

         15  public, with financial security, should they be

         16  injured in the performance of their duties.

         17                 The 6,000 peace officers we represent

         18  in various agencies in the City of New York, as well

         19  as the Health and Hospitals Corporation, Taxi and

         20  Limousine Commission and the New York City Housing

         21  Authority, these officers work under extremely

         22  difficult conditions and are in contact with

         23  numerous members of the public under various

         24  circumstances.

         25                 Peace officers operate in a bonafide
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          2  law enforcement capacity, and execute arrests on a

          3  daily basis, by the very nature of their work they

          4  are at heightened risk for injuries.

          5                 The serious inequity now is apparent.

          6  The Legislature has previously granted deputy

          7  sheriffs, paramedics, firefighters, police and

          8  correction officers who engage in similar public

          9  functions, accidental disability benefits.

         10                 This bill seeks to remedy this

         11  inequity and recognizes the inherent risk associated

         12  with these professionals. These individuals are

         13  justly deserving of these benefits as well as their

         14  families, should the individual suffer a disability,

         15  disabling, an injury or death.

         16                 Thank you very much for this

         17  opportunity to testify.

         18                 I would be happy to answer any

         19  questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Any questions?

         23                 Seeing none, sir, thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Have a good day.

          3                 Next we have Thomas Doyle, from the

          4  New York City Deputy Sheriffs' Association.

          5                 Thank you very much for coming, sir.

          6                 You may begin. Thank you.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning. I'm Tom

          8  Doyle. I'm the President of the Deputy Sheriffs'

          9  Association. I thank you, Chair, and Council

         10  members, for allowing me to be here to testify on

         11  behalf of the preconsidered SLR which will expand

         12  peace officer power to Deputy Sheriffs in the City.

         13                 I would like to agree with the

         14  representative from OLR who said that it would have

         15  an impact on safety and security in the City, it

         16  will have a very positive impact, I would imagine.

         17                 It allows the stop-n-frisk powers for

         18  some of our members who are assigned to the

         19  municipal protection detail who happen to be

         20  stationed in buildings in the City, and it's going

         21  to provide safety and security for members such as

         22  yourselves and other people who we are, you know,

         23  hired to protect.

         24                 Another thing that the bill provides

         25  is it makes it a capital crime to kill a deputy
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          2  sheriff in the City, which it presently is not.

          3                 It's also going to allow us to assist

          4  in the newly-integrated domestic violence courts in

          5  the Bronx, and they are taking off in Brooklyn, and

          6  it's going to be expanded in all the five boroughs.

          7                 We're really just looking for this

          8  legislation to help us assist members of the City,

          9  and I thank you for allowing me to come here and

         10  speak for it today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Any questions?

         14                 Seeing none, sir, thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 At this point in time I'm going to

         17  ask the clerk to please call the roll.

         18                 I'm recommending an aye vote on all

         19  of the items on today's agenda.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Rivera.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I vote aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chairman,

         24  may I be briefly excused to explain my vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Of course you
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          2  may.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

          4  very much. I want to commend the Committee for,

          5  again, proposing these SLRs today.

          6                 If we look at these SLRs

          7  cumulatively, they involve deputy sheriffs, school

          8  safety officers, campus peace officers, hospital

          9  police, taxi inspectors, parking control

         10  specialists, sanitation workers, investigators and

         11  Correction members.

         12                 If you look at it collectively, what

         13  we're doing today, what we're doing today has

         14  minimal impact financially on the City, less than $2

         15  million. And as Chair of the Labor Committee, I'll

         16  tell you, I see it as the right thing to do, because

         17  it creates a fair process for these workers and fair

         18  procedures for the workplace.

         19                 So, again, I vote yes because I think

         20  today it is the right thing to do.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Can I just

         24  pass for a moment, please?

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

          3  this will be the briefest explanation I ever had,

          4  whatever Addabbo said, me too.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Can I pass for

          7  a moment, please? Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I vote yes on

         10  all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dilan.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Fidler.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Council Member

         15  Sears and I are a little puzzled about the last

         16  comment the last witness made about capital crimes,

         17  and we're just kind of hoping -- we were going

         18  through the tear sheet here to see if there was some

         19  explanation of it. And not that I happen to oppose

         20  the death penalty, because I don't, but I was just

         21  kind of curious and I think Council Member Sears may

         22  have a difference of feeling on that issue as to

         23  what that comment meant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Give me one

         25  second while we look at the law.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: It's not on

          3  the explanation sheet, so...

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Mr. Doyle?

          5                 MR. DOYLE: Perhaps capital crime is

          6  the wrong -- it puts it in the same status as

          7  killing of a police officer, or it's right in the

          8  first paragraph of the legislation, or any other

          9  public safety officer in Westchester, Offices of

         10  Children and Family Services, it just puts it in the

         11  same type of -- makes it the same type of crime.

         12  It's not necessarily a death penalty offense. If

         13  that clears it up?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All right, in

         17  that case, I'd like to vote aye on all.

         18                 I also, I believe, and I see

         19  different things at different places in the packet,

         20  that I am a co-sponsor of SLR 86. It's not listed as

         21  such on the agenda, but if you look at some other

         22  places, I just want to be sure that I am, and

         23  inasmuch as the preconsidered SLR is not creating a

         24  new category of crime, I'd like to be added as a

         25  co-sponsor of that one on behalf of the deputy
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          2  sherrifs as well, and I vote aye on all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

          4  Sears.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye. And

          6  I think the ones that I'm not on I'll ask to be on.

          7  I think I may be on most of them.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We'll make sure

         10  that the counsel places both of your names on all

         11  the appropriate pieces of legislation.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         13  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         14  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         15                 Council Members, please sign the

         16  Committee reports.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We're going to

         19  hold the vote open for two more minutes to give

         20  other members ample time to come by.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 10:45 a.m.)

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            33

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of May 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

                                                            34

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

